
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

C.Hanagan
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau 
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswllt:Claire Hendy Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd   (01443 
424081) 

DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod rhithwir o’r PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - PLANT A 
PHOBL IFAINC yn cael ei gynnal yn ar DYDD MERCHER, 4YDD 
TACHWEDD, 2020 am 5.00 PM.

Caiff Aelodau nad ydyn nhw'n aelodau o'r pwyllgor  ac aelodau o'r cyhoedd gyfrannu 
yn y cyfarfod ar faterion y cyfarfod er bydd y cais yn ôl doethineb y 
Cadeirydd. Gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i Wasanaethau Democrataidd erbyn Dydd 
Llun, 2 Tachwedd 2020 trwy ddefnyddio'r manylion cyswllt uchod, gan gynnwys rhoi 
gwybod a fyddwch chi'n siarad Cymraeg neu Saesneg.

AGENDA
Tudalennau

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
Derbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu – Plant a Phobl Ifainc 

2. DATGANIAD O FUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Gynghorwyr, yn unol â 
gofynion Côd Ymddygiad y Cyngor.

Nodwch:

1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 
buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant 
sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan 



nhw'n gadael.

ADRODDIAD CYFARWYDDWR CYFADRAN Y GWASANAETHAU 
CYMUNED A’R GWASANAETHAU I BLANT 

3. GWASANAETHAU I BLANT: ADRODDIAD ADFER A CHYNLLUNIO 
WRTH GEFN 
Derbyn y newyddion diweddaraf mewn perthynas ag ymateb y 
Gwasanaethau i Blant i effaith barhaus y pandemig, gwaith adfer a 
chynlluniau wrth gefn. 

5 - 12
4. DEILLIANNAU ADRODDIAD AROLYGIAETH GOFAL CYMRU 

Rhoi cyfle i Aelodau glywed y newyddion diweddaraf mewn perthynas â 
deilliannau Arolygiad Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru ac adolygu'r gwaith a 
gyflawnwyd ar y cyd â'r Gwasanaethau i Blant yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ddiwethaf yn ogystal â'r camau gweithredu wedi'u cyflawni hyd yn hyn.

13 - 18
5. ADOLYGIAD Y CADEIRYDD A DOD Â'R CYFARFOD I BEN 

Adlewyrchu ar y cyfarfod a'r camau gweithredu i'w dwyn ymlaen.

6. MATERION BRYS 
Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn faterion brys yng 
ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu

Cylchreliad:-

(Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol Y Cynghorydd S. Rees-Owen a 
Y Cynghorydd J Edwards – Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd, yn y drefn honno)

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol:
Y Cynghorydd S.Evans, Y Cynghorydd J Brencher, Y Cynghorydd H Fychan, 
Y Cynghorydd A Calvert, Y Cynghorydd S Powell, Y Cynghorydd M Powell, 
Y Cynghorydd M Griffiths, Y Cynghorydd Owen-Jones, Y Cynghorydd S Morgans, 
Y Cynghorydd G Stacey, Y Cynghorydd L De Vet and Y Cynghorydd W Jones

Aelodau Cyfetholedig:
Mr M Cleverley, Cynrychiolydd Cymdeithas Genedlaethol yr Ysgolfeistri ac Undeb yr 
Athrawesau a'r Panel Athrawon
Mr J Fish, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol
Ms A Jones, Cynrychiolydd UNITE
Mr C Jones, Cynrychiolydd GMB
Mrs C Jones, Cynrychiolydd Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Athrawon a'r Panel Athrawon



Mr D Price, Cynrychiolydd UNSAIN/UNISON
Mr A Ricketts, Cynrychiolydd Awdurdodau Esgobaethol â'r hawl i bleidlais
Mrs R Nicholls, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol



Tudalen wag



 

 

 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020/21 
 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE  

 

Agenda Item No: 3 

 

4TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, 

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

   

Children’s Services: Recovery 

and Contingency Planning  

 
Authors: Liz Pearce. Head of Service Improvement and Miskin,  
  Annabel Lloyd, Director Children Services. 
               
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Scrutiny Members in relation to: 

 Children’s Services response to the continuing impact of the pandemic, recovery 
and contingency planning. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that Members: 
 

2.1 Acknowledge the information contained within the report. 
 

2.2 Scrutinise and comment on the information provided.  
 
 

3. BACKGROUND  
 

3.1 A Scrutiny Committee on 9th September, Children’s Services provided a verbal 
report in relation to the functioning of the service during the Pandemic and the 
developing Recovery Plan. The period since has been a demanding one 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 3



 

 

operationally, and has seen the service move to a contingency planning mode, 
then adjusting to a business critical one in preparation for the national Fire Break 
following the First Minister’s announcement on 19th October. The service is poised 
to respond to additional adjustments to restrictions at the exit of the Fire Break 
phase on 9.11.20. 

 
Children’s Services’ Recovery Planning  
 
3.2 Much of Children’s Services’ provision is required by statute, and is not altered by 

the Pandemic and related legislation, hence, for the most part, we have been able 
to adjust our delivery method by working from home, using technology more,  risk 
assessing face to face contact with families, and providing staff with PPE, but very 
little else has changed.  

 
3.3 There continues to be uncertainty about the specific mid and long term impact of 

the Pandemic for vulnerable families, however, given the rate of referral and the 
conditions families face which, in many cases are understood to compound 
adversity, the service is sadly projecting increasing demand, whilst working to 
connect as many families as possibly to early help or preventative services. 

 
3.4 The activity of the Recovery Plan has been developed in line with the following 

principles which are agreed as a national framework for children’s services’ 
recovery plans: 

 

 The safety and well-being of children and young people and their families are 

paramount 

 The rights and voices of children and young people must be regarded 

 The well-being of staff and their families to be looked after   

 Realistic delivery of priorities ensuring capacity and capability 

 Working to clear and consistent guidance  

 Keeping the whole system dynamic and responsive to meet the needs of 

children and young people by fulfilling care & support plans and moving 

children and families on through appropriate services as/when necessary 

 Working with third sector organisations to support children and families 

3.5  The following table provides an update on the Children’s Service recovery plan 
which includes the following actions:  

 

Action  Update  

1. Develop a fit for 
purpose agile/home 
working framework 
for Children’s 
Services, which 
supports both the 
physical and 
emotional well-being 

Children’s Services current working arrangements aim to take into 
account these responses 

 Staff continue to work from home as required and have been 
provided with equipment to do so by the Council.  

  A small number of office bases remain accessible for staff 
for essential functions, where PPE is available, some 
opportunity is consequently afforded for direct work with 
children and families and team meetings 

Tudalen 6



 

 

of staff and optimises 
our work with families 

 The Service has focussed an element of its quality assurance 
work on support for staff. 

 
The service has provided regular updated information for all staff 
on working arrangements, the most  version was circulated in 
preparation for the fire-break lockdown 
 
However suitable accommodation being available to Children’s 
Services and accompanying facilities accessible by service users 
will be essential for the future. 
 
A staff survey has been conducted, there were 318 responses 
and the main findings collated and provided to staff, which 
include: 

 68% indicated that they preferred a combination of 
home/office working                                                 

 14% preferred full-time office  

 14% expressed a preference for full-time home working 

 40% had found working from home to be slightly challenging, 
whilst 13% had found working from home very challenging 

 77% of those that responded to the survey indicated that 
access to team/peer support was important to them 

 61% of those who responded raised issues in relation to 
equipment, e.g. seating, desks and monitor size. A number 
also highlighted difficulties accessing photocopying facilities. 

2. Building upon 
business critical and 
emergency functions 
currently being 
delivered develop a 
safe sustainable 
service delivery 
model to provide 
Children’s Services 
statutory 
responsibilities that 
will meet WG 
guidance. 

 

Children’s Services endeavours to work to the Welsh Government 
statutory guidance which can be found here : 
https://gov.wales/childrens-social-services-during-covid-19-
pandemic-guidance-html. 
 
Priority is being given to safely visiting and hearing the voices of 
children on the Child Protection Register and those looked after. 
Child Protection Conferences and children looked after reviews 
are taking place using technology, and other adjustments to 
ensure including of relevant people. We continue to support our 
foster carers. Our children’s homes provide care for some of our 
most vulnerable young people and we have recommenced 
provision of some short-term residential breaks for disabled 
children. We continue to discharge our safeguarding duties 
including work with the Family Court. 
 
The reduction of face to face contact with our service users and 
carers as well as opportunities for direct work can often be 
challenging and restrictive for a profession and services built upon 
relationships with people and partners.  

3. Ensure staffing 
capacity in Intensive 
Intervention is 

We are currently working with a 33% social work vacancy factor 
in our Intensive Intervention Services, which has an impact upon 
provision and staff. Work is underway to develop a mid- term 

Tudalen 7

https://gov.wales/childrens-social-services-during-covid-19-pandemic-guidance-html
https://gov.wales/childrens-social-services-during-covid-19-pandemic-guidance-html


 

 

sufficient to meet 
need 

 

solution whilst we complete a longer-term workforce strategy in 
conjunction with a review of the social work grading 
structure ahead of  a recruitment campaign. 

4. Ensure vulnerable 
children have access 
to Education and 
emergency childcare 
provision, working in 
partnership with 
Education 

Action complete - Children back at school and all Flying Start 
provision recommenced and emergency childcare provision has 
ceased 

5. Ensure robust 
safeguarding 
arrangements 
working with partners 
in the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg 
Safeguarding Board  

Full Board arrangements have resumed, and the subgroup 
structure supporting the  Executive Board and Operational 
Committee has been amended to take account of the learning and 
good practice identified during the first lockdown. 

6. Ensure the Youth 
Offending Service 
(YOS) undertakes its 
statutory duties and 
delivers its core 
functions. 

 

YOS has continued to provide Appropriate Adult support to young 
people at the police station, and this has been central to the 
coordination of work with young people who attend the youth 
court in Merthyr Tydfil. All young people who are subject to 
Intensive Supervision and Surveillance community orders receive 
daily contact from YOS staff, and the YOS continues to prioritise 
those young people who are deemed to be a high risk to 
themselves or the community. 

7. Youth Engagement 
and Participation 
Service (YEPS) - 
Continue to offer 
virtual open access 
activities and plan for 
re-introduction of 
face-to-face provision 
and provide virtual 
information, advice 
and guidance to 
vulnerable young 
people utilising 
WICID TV and 
YouTube. 

YEPS staff have returned to secondary school sites to deliver face 
to face to face support for young people. Service delivery pathway 
established in partnership with Attendance and Well-being 
Service, Resilient Families Service, Education Psychology 
Service, and Eye 2 Eye Counselling to support young people to 
return to school. Virtual youth offer remains available including 
virtual youth clubs, live Q&A sessions, live chat sessions. 
Planning is underway for YEPS to commence proactive street 
based youth work by following the Firebreak ( subject to 
restrictions) across RCT working alongside, the YOS, (including 
CCTV) and BAROD 
 

 
3.6  In anticipation of increasing Covid infection in the community, and in line with the 

Council’s expectation, a contingency  plan was considered and finalised in 
September 2020, the result of which has seen the service continue to prioritise 
business critical services and adjust the pace of our recovery planning business.  

 
3.7  In preparation for the Firebreak Period, the services is re-categorising all cases by 

risk and need into red, amber and green. Notwithstanding that situations and 

Tudalen 8



 

 

circumstances can change rapidly, responses to red cases only will be prioritised 
during the 2 week period whilst maintaining our business critical services which 
includes the following business areas : 

 
Access to Services and Family Support 

 Emergency Duty Team (EDT) 

 Front Door for referrals – Information Advice and Assistance   / MASH 

 Assess and provide support at home where there is breakdown or where input 
is critical to support children and young people to remain at home 

 Direct Payment Clients – we will prioritise these individuals as some may be 
assessed as high risk and there may be a risk of carer breakdown/withdrawal 
due to need for carers to isolate.   

 MASH Business Support – all Child Protection functions 

 High risk cases identified by Resilient Families Service 

 High risk cases identified by Youth Engagement and Participation Service 
 

Safeguarding Duties 

 Strategy discussions, meetings and child protection investigations  

 Child protection visits- children at the most immediate risk will be identified and 

prioritised   

 Record of key decisions and drafting of Child Protection Plans 

 Child protection medicals-dependent on Health Service capacity  

 Children requiring placements 

 Child protection conferences-virtual   

 Decision making in respect of threshold for Professional Concerns 

 Pre-birth assessments (remotely wherever possible) 

 Public Law Outline meetings for emergency cases that require agreement to 

placement or court application 

 Access to Child Protection Register and arranging temporary registration in 

other Local Authorities 

 Hospital discharges of children at risk 

Children Looked After 

 Providing care to children placed in our residential children’s homes 

 Children looked after statutory visits- children at the most immediate risk will 

be identified and prioritised including potential placement break down 

otherwise contact will be by telephone  

 Continue payments to all providers caring for children  

 Non-essential visits to children’s residential homes will be restricted 

 RCT residential children’s homes will be kept open for placements  
 Adoption transitions for children following joint risk assessment with VVC. 

 Contact for parents will be assessed on a case by case basis particular 

consideration being given to new-born babies and court agreed arrangements 

 
 

Tudalen 9



 

 

Youth Offending 

 Children held in police stations and requiring an appropriate adult (on basis of 

full access to PPE) 

 Young people on Intensive Supervision and Surveillance Orders and Intensive 

Supervision and Surveillance Bail support 

 Young people who are remanded into the secure estate or sentenced and 

residing in the secure estate 

 Transition and resettlement of young people being released from the secure 

estate 

 Young people deemed to be a ‘high risk’ to themselves and the community 

 Young people appearing in Court 

 

 

4. HOW ARE WE DOING? 
 

Performance Area 
This  year / Last year as at q 2  

Comment 
Q2 2019 Q2 2020 

Number of Contacts  

8447 9279 

10% increase in contacts received 
in the period up to Qtr 2 of 2020 
when compared to the same 
period of 2019 

Number added to 
Child Protection 
Register 

264 302 
14% increase in new child 
protection registrations 

Number of children 
on the Child 
Protection Register  

421 440 
4.5% increase in the overall 
numbers of children on the Child 
Protection Register 

Number Becoming 
Looked After 

100 65 
35% decrease in the number of 
children becoming looked after 

Total Number of 
Children Looked After 

693 709 
2% increase in the overall number 
of children who are looked after 

Rate of Looked After  
per 10,000 child 
capita 

138.3 141.5 
Increase in the rate of children 
looked after per 10,000 population 

Number of Exits from 
CLA  

81 73 
10% decrease in the number of 
care leavers 

Number of Adoption 
Placements Made  11 11 

No change in the number of 
children placed with prospective 
adopters  

Percentage of 
children who are 
looked after who are 
placed with their 
parents or extended 
family 

43% 44% 

Small increase in the percentage 
of children who are looked after 
who are placed at home with 
parents or placed with extended 
family 

Tudalen 10



 

 

Number of Care 
Leavers Being 
Supported 

240 274 
14% increase in the number of 
care leavers requiring support 

Care leavers not in 
education, 
employment or 
education  

58.69% 48.82% 

10% decrease in the number of 
care leavers who were not 
engaged in education employment 
or training 

 

 

5. NEXT STEPS  
 

5.1 The service will continue to provide services to families with a priority approach on 
the basis of risk and need as outlined above, and with an emphasis on prevention 
in line with the Welsh recovery framework principles for children’s services.  

 
 
6.  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
6.1 This is an information report. 
 
6.2 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken as part of the implementation 

process. 
 
 

7. CONSULTATION  
 
7.1 This is an information report. 
 Further consultation will however be undertaken as part of the implementation 

process. 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 

 
8.1  There are no direct financial implications aligned to this report. 

 
 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  

 
9.1  The legal requirements for children and young people are set down within the 

Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and the Children Act 1989. 
 
 
10. LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER CORPORATE 

PRIORITIES/ SIP 
 

10.1 This consultation links to the corporate priority of promoting independence and 
positive lives for everyone by ensuring that the Council listens to the people it 
provides for.   

Tudalen 11



 

 

 
10.2  It also contributes to the following well-being goals:  

 
•  A prosperous Wales  
•  A resilient Wales. 
•  A healthier Wales. 
•  A more equal Wales  
•  A Wales of cohesive communities  
•  A globally responsible Wales  

 
 

11. CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 Early help and statutory children’s services have, and will continue to be provided 

during the Pandemic, in line with the adjustments set out above. 
 
11.2 Foster carers, and Children’s Services staff have worked hard to maintain services 

under difficult circumstances. 
 
11.3 In anticipation of increasing challenges for families, our focus on early help and 

prevention remains a priority.  
 
 

 

Tudalen 12



 

 

 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2020/21 
 

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE  

Agenda Item No: 4  

 

 

 4th November 2020 

 

REPORT OF THE GROUP DIRECTOR, 

COMMUNITY & CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

   

Care Inspectorate Wales 

 
 

Author: Catherine Tyler, Service Development Manager Children Services, 
               
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Scrutiny Members on the outcome of Care  

Inspectorate Wales’ (CIW) inspection and review activities with Children’s Services 
during the last year and actions taken by the service to date.  
 
Please note that the report outlining the findings of the Disabled Children’s Service 
Review and proposed next steps was brought to Scrutiny Committee on the 
4/12/2019 for consideration and comment. See link below: 
 
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Child
renandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2019/12/04/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCo
mmittee04Dec2019.aspx 

 
CIW activity has included: 

 

 The inspection of children’s services, focusing on support for disabled 
children in December 2019.  

 Focused activity with regard to support for care leavers in March 2020.  

Tudalen 13

Agendwm 4

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2019/12/04/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee04Dec2019.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2019/12/04/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee04Dec2019.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee/2019/12/04/ChildrenandYoungPeopleScrutinyCommittee04Dec2019.aspx


 

 

 CIW’s Quality of Care Review Reports 1/4/2019 to 31/3/2020 in respect of 
Children’s Residential Care and Fostering Services have also been 
completed. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that Members: 
 
2.1 Acknowledge the information contained within the report. 
 
2.2 Scrutinise and comment on the information provided.  
 
 

3. BACKGROUND  
 
Disabled Children’s Service 

 
Children’s Services received CIW’s Inspection Report on the provision of early 
help, care and support and seamless transition for disabled children and their 
families in Rhondda Cynon Taf in March 2020. See link below: 
 
https://careinspectorate.wales/sites/default/files/2020-03/200309-support-and-
arrangements-for-children-disabled-rtcbc-en.pdf 

 
 
The report identified a number of strengths which included: 
 

 A strong vision for remodelling services for disabled children.  

 An effective and improved response at the ‘front door’ of children’s services. 

 The multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH) evidenced good joint working 

arrangements.  

 An understanding of the social model of disability within our prevention and early 

intervention services and an intention to improve equality of access for disabled 

children. 

 The Children with Additional Needs Service (CANS) is an effective and valued 

service, with a focus on family strengths and the achievement of personal 

outcomes. 

 Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council (RCTCBC) provides its own 

psychological support for children and practitioner consultation.  

 That staff were positive and felt well supported by colleagues and managers. 

 Evidence of partnership working in the development of an emotional well-being 

service jointly with Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board.  

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 14

https://careinspectorate.wales/sites/default/files/2020-03/200309-support-and-arrangements-for-children-disabled-rtcbc-en.pdf
https://careinspectorate.wales/sites/default/files/2020-03/200309-support-and-arrangements-for-children-disabled-rtcbc-en.pdf


 

 

Areas for improvement were also identified they included: 
 

 Increased focus on family strengths and the identification of personal outcomes.  

 Improved practice in relation to assessments of parent carers.  

 Ensuring greater promotion of the voice of the child including the use of 

advocacy. 

 Greater support for siblings of disabled children. 

 To develop alternative approaches to providing respite/short breaks.  

 The local authority and the health board need to reach greater resolution on 

eligibility for continuing care arrangements for children with complex needs. 

 Improving quality assurance within DCT. 

 Consideration to be given to the benefits to disabled young people of earlier 

active involvement by adult services social workers and Personal Advisors (PAs). 

 Re-establish the disability register. 

 CTMUHB and RCTCBC to continue to focus efforts to achieve a more joined up 

strategic approach to the advantage of citizens. 

 

As outlined in the December 2019 Disabled Children’s Service Review Report to 

Scrutiny Committee, work was already underway to change the delivery model 

for disabled children prior to the CIW inspection. Where further areas for 

improvement were identified they have been incorporated into the Disabled 

Children’s Services Remodelling Implementation Plan. 

 

16+ Teams 

At the end of March 2020, Children’s Services received CIW feedback in relation 
to the focused activity undertaken earlier that month with the 16+ teams.  The  
strengths identified by inspectors that Personal Assistants (PAs) were committed 
to promoting the well-being of young people; that young people valued their PAs; 
and that there were good examples of good contact between the PAs and other 
professionals. The areas for improvement identified included: 

 

 Improving the outcome focused approach, ensuring that young people’s wishes 
and feelings are evident in pathway planning. 

 Ensuring Pathway Plans are reviewed in a timelier manner and involve updates 
from relevant agencies. 

 Improving quality assurance.  

 Ensuring young people have an active offer of a service in Welsh. 
 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 15



 

 

4. NEXT STEPS  
 
Action plans have been developed for both the Disabled Children’s Service and 
16+ Teams which incorporate the areas for improvement identified by CIW. As 
previously noted in the case of the Disabled Children’s Services they have been 
included in the Remodelling Implementation Plan. 
 
Due to the unprecedented circumstances relating to Covid 19, on the 23rd of 
March 2020 Children’s Services Management Team made changes and 
adjustments to working arrangements. Four critical areas of work on which to 
focus activity were identified: access to services and family support, safeguarding 
duties, children looked after and youth offending. A reduced service was 
delivered in these areas by prioritising those at greatest level of risk and need. All 
development and improvement activity was placed on hold. 
 
Quality Assurance monitoring was reduced to two key indicators: 

 Communication and support for staff 

 Quality of work 
 
RCT Children’s Services has developed a recovery plan, and a separate report is 

being provided in that regard. We are now beginning to deliver what is likely to be 

a staged return of services; having regard to changes in local restrictions and any 

future national requirements which will impact on the extent and rate of recovery. 

The guiding principle must be how we safeguard the health and wellbeing of our 

service users and staff as well as minimise the ongoing risk of infection.  

We are now in a position to begin to take forward elements of the action plans 
that have been prioritised (subject to the impact of local restrictions). They are as 
follows: 
 
 
Disabled Children’s Service: 
 

 Implement the revised Disabled Children’s Service Structure and model of 
working. 

 Develop a clear pathway for disabled children that strengthens early 
intervention and transition. 

 Improve strength based assessment and outcome focused planning through 
changes to Disabled Children’s Service model of working and training for 
practitioners. 

 Children's Services Quality Assurance Framework to be embedded within the 
service. 

 Work is underway with colleagues in adult services to incorporate the ‘carers’ 
conversation’ into a new carers assessment.                                                      
 

 
 

Tudalen 16



 

 

16+ Teams: 
 

 A strengths based outcome focused approach has been identified as a priority 
training need for Children's Services. A training programme is being developed. 

 Focus on team development. Consider the culture of the team, how things 
currently operate, strengths, opportunities for development.  

 Review and amend guidance to practitioners in 16+ Teams concerning roles 
and responsibilities with regard to the implementation of the SSWB (Wales) Act 
2014. 

 Children's Services Quality Assurance Framework to be embedded within the 
service. 

 Utilise performance data, greater use to be made of available information to 
analyse and explore outcomes for young people. 

 
 
5.  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.1 This is an information report. 
5.2 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken as part of the 

implementation process. 
 
 

6. CONSULTATION  
 
6.1 This is an information report. 
6.2 Further consultation will however be undertaken as part of the 

implementation process. 
 

 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 

 
7.1 There are no direct financial implications aligned to this report. 
 
7.2 Funding opportunities may need to be explored to take forward elements of 

the Action Plans.  
 

 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  

 
8.1  The legal requirements for children and young people are set down within the 

Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 
 

 
9. LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER CORPORATE 

PRIORITIES/ SIP 
 

9.1 This consultation links to the corporate priority of promoting independence 
and positive lives for everyone by ensuring that the Council listens to the 

Tudalen 17



 

 

people it provides for.   
 

9.2  It also contributes to the following well-being goals:  
 

• A prosperous Wales  
• A resilient Wales. 
• A healthier Wales. 
• A more equal Wales  
• A Wales of cohesive communities  
• A globally responsible Wales  

 
 
 
10. CONCLUSION 
 

There is a strong commitment within RCT Children’s Services to support the 
Disabled Children’s Service and the 16+ Teams to implement positive change, 
whilst acknowledging and building upon the strengths identified. Steering groups 
have been established and the action / remodelling plans provide a clear 
framework to facilitate and drive change to deliver improved outcomes for 
children and young people within RCT.  

  

 

 
 

Tudalen 18


	Agenda
	3 Gwasanaethau i Blant: Adroddiad Adfer a Chynllunio wrth Gefn
	4 Deilliannau Adroddiad Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru

